Penalty Stroke Issue among the Pro Leaders at 2004 SF Safari

There was an issue with scorecards being turned in late by the MPO leader group after the 3rd round of the 2004 SF Safari.  This issue is a tournament director’s nightmare: having to make a ruling that will influence who wins and who doesn’t. It becomes a big issue when the top two finishers get $1000 and $550.  As TD, my preference was to let the players settle it on the course, so I choose not to penalize someone unless it was a clear violation of the rules.  Having said that, I must respect the other players in the field who have followed the rules by assessing penalties when there is a clear violation.  

Timeline of events:

9:00am – round starts on time.  MPO leader group did not take their cards, so they used a temporary scorecard during the round.  Scorecards are left sitting in the scoreboard at tournament central, where the results will be tabulated.

12:00 noon – scorecards start coming in

12:10 pm – round likely completed by all groups (hindsight)

12:15 pm – 3rd round declared complete by tournament director for purpose of late cards.

                   All other pro cards have been turned in.

12:25 pm – a complaint is issued by some pro players that the leader card has not been turned in on time.   The temporary scorecard is another potential issue.  No sign of the MPO leader cards.

12:30 to 12:35 pm – first member of the group (JD Lee) submits his scorecard.  He has transferred his hole-by-hole score to the official scorecard by memory and signed the card.  His score was verified when the temporary scorecard was finally turned in.  The TD accepted this scorecard as on time and accurate. 

12:35 to 12:40pm – another member of the group (Gregg Barsby) transfers his score to the official scorecard and submits it.  This is also accepted as on time and verified as accurate.  No strokes are assessed to this player.

12:45 – the temporary scorecard is submitted with scores of the other two players (Roger Cansler & Mike Loya).  These two players were each assessed two stroke penalties because the card came in 30 minutes after the round was declared complete (PDGA rules dictate cards must be turned in 25 minutes after the round is declared complete).

Issues & Rulings:

Edwin “Stick” Dissosway (TD) met with “Mr. Neal” Hoelworth (senior NorCal and PDGA rep) and Steve Ganz, to discuss the incident and make a decision.  The concept of penalizing the entire group when cards are late was presented, but this did not apply here because each player had his own scorecard.  Eventually Stick made the decision to penalize only the two late cards, and not the two who signed and submitted their cards before the deadline.  The PDGA has reviewed the case, and they support this as the correct decision.

One issue was that the two players who were not stroked transferred scores by memory to their official scorecards (these scores were later confirmed as correct when the temporary hole-by-hole card came in).  The TD accepted them as legal because they met the criteria of being accurate, on-time, and the hole-by-hole scores were kept individually and verifiable.  In addition, there are no guidelines in the rules for transferring scores, so any method of transfer (including by memory) should be accepted as long as it is correct.  Again, the PDGA agreed with the tournament director’s decision.

The idea of stroking the entire group was overruled by the fact that the official cards were turned in signed and accurate.  Stroking the entire group only applies when the entire group’s scores are kept on the same scorecard.

The temporary scorecard used during the round caused some discussion.  The group kept hole-by-hole scores on a makeshift scorecard because their cards were left at tournament central.  The tournament director accepted the temporary card used during the round, with the understanding scores would be transferred to the official scorecard after the round.  

Summary:

The correct decision was made during the tournament to penalize two players and not the other two.  The PDGA competition committee supported this decision.  Anyone who contradicts this decision is wrong, and they are not willing to look at the situation objectively.  5n support of this decision, here is the PDGA’s reply to the sequence of events:

From:  John Chapman, PDGA competition committee
Regarding the transferring of scores by two players and those cards being accepted:

As long as you can verify that the scores are correct, then this is ok.  The "card" was turned in within 25 minutes, so there should be no penalty throws via 804.03E.
Regarding the fact that only two players were assessed two stroke penalties because the temporary card came in 30 minutes after the round was declared complete:

Proper procedure.  Each player is responsible for his individual scorecard, and they were more than 25 minutes late, so they receive 2 penalty throws via 804.03E.
Regarding the concept of penalizing the entire group:

Had all the players been on the same scorecard, and the scorecard had not been completed and turned in within 25 minutes of the end of the round, then the scorecard is late, and each player listed on the scorecard would receive 2 penalty strokes (804.03E again).  However, it appears that each player had an individual scorecard, and 2 players were late, and 2 players were not late.  The 2 players who were not late should not be penalized in that case, as their scorecards were turned in in time.
Finally, congratulations go out to Gregg Barsby, who played within the rules and won the 2004 San Francisco Safari.

